ADDENDUM STATEMENT BY ELIOT I. BERNSTEIN FOR CRIMINAL COMPLAINT FILED WITH PALM BEACH SHERIFF OFFICE ( PBSO ) FOR NEW CASE NUMBER AND INVESTIGATION OF CRIMES ALLEGED TO BE OCCURRING IN FORECLOSURE CASE 50-2018-CA-002317-XXXX-MB AND FURTHER SUPPLEMENT EXISTING CASE NUMBERS AND REQUESTS FOR INVESTIGATION -  MAY 22, 2022 


Eliot I. Bernstein of 2753 NW 34th St, Boca Raton, FL 33434, Phone 561-245-8588, email,  iviewit@iviewit.tv, make this Statement as an Addendum to an Official Report seeking a new PBSO Case number and new investigation of new and ongoing alleged crimes relating to 15th Judicial Mortgage Foreclosure action Case Number 50-2018-CA-002317-XXXX-MB titled SAHM, WALTER E V BERNSTEIN FAMILY REALTY LLC. 

These allegations should be issued a new PBSO case number and new investigation but appear in all ways to relate to prior ongoing criminal actions and frauds against my life, the life of my family members and property and financial interests we hold in Palm Beach County which have been reported in writing and eventually referred up to Internal Affairs and further sent to Colonel John L. Prieschl, J.D., on July 18, 2018 and August 09, 2018, we have not heard back since contacting Colonel Prieschl. See,
URL 1 _____________________________
URL 2 _____________________________

The primary parties I believe or suspect to be involved in these new crimes in progress are Robert Sweetapple, Esq., Alan B. Rose, Esq., Brian O’Connell, Esq., Patricia Sahm and Theodore ( Ted ) Bernstein. 

Witnesses who I believe have relevant knowledge of these events include but are not limited to lawyers Leslie Ferderigos, Esq., Lalit K. Jain, Esq., and former attorney who is now Disbarred Arthur Morburger, Esq. who was not suspended and still practicing during certain times herein and since being Disbarred is still receiving documents in the case being on the E Service List through the Courts. 

The nature of the crimes I believe have been committed and which appear to be ongoing are Offering a False Instruments for Filing in a Foreclosure case directly affecting the Title and use and possession of real property located at my family residence at 2753 NW 34th St, Boca Raton, FL 33434. 

There are also fraud crimes that apply for the series of False Instruments filed and fraud upon the Court and Simulating legal process by the use of a Deceased person, Walter Sahm, Plaintiff in the case, making official Filings as if he is still Alive and Counsel Robert Sweetapple officially “Appearing” before the Court on Nov. 22, 2021 at a Summary Judgment Hearing “As IF” Walter Sahm was still alive when a Death Certificate dating back to January of 2021 shows Walter Sahm to be Deceased on January 5, 2021. 

Yet all of the primary parties above and Plaintiff Counsel Robert Sweetapple and Plaintiff Patricia Sahm have Hidden this information from the Court   ( thus acting in fraud ) and made official Filings including a Judgment impacting the Title to this real property AS IF Walter Sahm was still alive and appearing in Court as if he was still alive, instead of filing for substitution of parties and appearing in a proper Representative capacity for his Estate or Personal Representative of his Estate or Guardian Ad Litem. 

Florida has a very specific Rule that applies when a person like Walter Sahm has died in the middle of an ongoing litigation case at Florida Rule of Civil Procedure Rule 1.260 - SURVIVOR; SUBSTITUTION OF PARTIES where a party or attorney must Notify the Court of the Death of a party and Substitute the proper person in a Representative capacity for the Estate of the Deceased person. 

In addition to the direct Florida Rule requiring the Notification and Suggestion of Death to be filed in the Case, the State of Florida Courts have long case rules indicating when a party dies the attorney’s authority to act for the Deceased person “terminates” instantly until a proper Representative or Guardian Ad Litem is appointed. 

Counsel Robert Sweetapple for Plaintiff Patricia Sahm first made Official Filings which I believe are False under Criminal law starting in August of 2021 nearly 7 months after Walter Sahm died by filing for Summary Judgment to Foreclose on property which I have interests in and which is beneficially owned by my 3 Sons as the only Owners and Members of Bernstein Family Realty, LLC. 

These filings can be found at the Palm Beach Clerk’s Office and also at ECaseView under Official Document Numbers: 

Document No. 85	08/05/2021	MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT
MOTION FOR SUMMARY FINAL JUDGMENT OF FORECLOSURE, TAXATION OF COSTS, AND AWARD OF ATTORNEYS' FEES


Document No. 86	08/19/2021	NOTICE OF HEARING
NOTICE OF HEARING 11/22/2021 10:30:00 AM. 

Thus, on the fraud level Counsel Sweetapple was summoning and Noticing myself, my wife and 3 sons into a Court appearance acting as if Walter Sahm was still alive while never Noticing or Substituting the fact that he had been Deceased since January of 2021.   I have attached a copy of the Official Notice of Hearing filing to show Walter Sahm is presented to the Court as if he was Alive when in fact according to his Death Certificate he had been Deceased for months. 

Counsel Sweetapple then proceeds to “Appear in Person” at the Nov. 22, 2021 Hearing on Summary Judgment with Patricia Sahm present both appearing before the Court as if Walter Sahm was present and Counsel Sweetapple making arguments for Walter Sahm as if he was still alive without ever Notifying the Court or parties he was deceased for months.  A Transcript of this Hearing is available. 

Counsel Sweetapple then proceeds to Electronically Mail Documents to the Court itself to obtain a Final Judgment of Foreclosure again making it “appear” as if Walter Sahm was alive and never Notifying of Death or Substituting the Walter Sahm Estate into the case and this Final Judgment was issued by Judge Kastrenakes and Officially Recorded in the Court and Real Property Index system falsely showing Walter Sahm to be alive when he was deceased. 

See Official Document No. 88	12/23/2021	FINAL JUDGMENT FORECLOSURE, AMOUNT OF FJ $353,574.68, SALE DATE 04/20/2022, SIGNED DATE 12/21/2021 - J KASTRENAKES BOOK 33193 PAGE 500-504
$353,574.68 04/20/2022 12/21/2021 J KASTRENAKES. 

These false and fraudulent filings directly affected the Title to the property and caused harm to myself and wife and sons by having the home on the Foreclosure Sale auction block based on False Official filings. 

To further show the Direct Intent, Knowledge and Willfulness of both Counsel Robert Sweetapple and Patricia Sahm, months after the Judgment but before the Sale Date on Foreclosure my wife and I both made Filings with the Court to Show the Suggestion of Death of Walter Sahm and that it dated back to January of 2021 and that Counsel Sweetapple and Patricia Sahm’s Foreclosure Judgment was taken illegally because of the Florida Rule yet Counsel Sweetapple again knowingly, willingly, and intentionally proceeded to File 2 further False Official Filings by Filing a Notice of Sale under Document No. 158 on April 7, 2022 and then a Proof of Publication in the Palm Beach Post Publicizing the Sale on April 14, 2022 again Falsely filing as if Walter Sahm was still alive and not showing he was Deceased and had an Estate or Estate Representative. 

Document No. 158	   04/07/2022 NOTICE OF SALE, SALE DATE 04/20/2022
4-20-2022 WALTER E SAHM AND PATRICIA SAHM V BERNSTEIN FAMILY REALTY LLC 04/20/202

Document No. 167	   04/14/2022	   PROOF OF PUBLICATION
NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE


I believe one of the Criminal Sections violated here is Florida Statute 817.535 - Unlawful filing of false documents or records against real or personal property which is under the Chapter for Fraudulent Practices. 

Under the Definitions, 

(a) “File” means to present an instrument for recording in an official record or to cause an instrument to be presented for recording in an official record.

c) “Instrument” means any judgment, mortgage, assignment, pledge, lien, financing statement, encumbrance, deed, lease, bill of sale, agreement, mortgage, notice of claim of lien, notice of levy, promissory note, mortgage note, release, partial release or satisfaction of any of the foregoing, or any other document that relates to or attempts to restrict the ownership, transfer, or encumbrance of or claim against real or personal property, or any interest in real or personal property.
(d) “Official record” means the series of instruments, regardless of how they are maintained, which a clerk of the circuit court, or any person or entity designated by general law, special law, or county charter, is required or authorized by law to record. 

(2)(a) A person who files or directs a filer to file, with the intent to defraud or harass another, any instrument containing a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation that purports to affect an owner’s interest in the property described in the instrument commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.


Attorney Alan Rose and “Trustee” Ted Bernstein - During the Nov. 22, 2021 Summary Judgment Hearing Counsel Robert Sweetapple directly references attorney Alan Rose for Ted Bernstein and that he was conferring with Alan Rose and having Alan Rose review the numbers before submitting the Final Judgment which again was submitted Falsely in the name of Walter Sahm as if he was alive and thus both Alan Rose and Ted Bernstein were involved in the process that resulted in the False Foreclosure Judgment taken in fraud and should be investigated as part of this complaint. 

In fact, the entire Foreclosure case looks like the continuation of the pattern of frauds already reported to this Law Enforcement Agency at the PBSO involving Alan Rose, Esq., Brian O’Connell and Ted Bernstein. See, Case Numbers _________________________________. 

Attorney Robert Sweetapple, Patricia Sahm, Attorney Alan Rose, Ted Bernstein involved in Last Minute “Extortion” Attempts against my Family Days before the Scheduled False Sale of the property: 

This Agency can contact Witness Glen Schwartzman, Esq., who can Verify that even though these Parties did NOT have Lawful Authority to Act for Deceased person Walter Sahm, all of these parties engaged in further Extortion of my wife and family and self by using “Last Minute” attempts to Buy out of the Sale in a “Settlement” while acting to Settle for Walter Sahm too who has NO Personal Representative or Estate set up yet which lead to great stress and distress creating Fear and other injury in my direct household as a result of these False Official Filings and Fraudulent acts and only has been given Temporary Relief by forcing the Filing of a Bankruptcy against my three sons company BFR, LLC. 


Federal Due Process Rights - violation of 42 USC 1983 and Federal Criminal Liability under Section 242 of Title 18: 

According to the US Justice Department, 

Section 242 of Title 18 makes it a crime for a person acting under color of any law to willfully deprive a person of a right or privilege protected by the Constitution or laws of the United States.

For the purpose of Section 242, acts under "color of law" include acts not only done by federal, state, or local officials within their lawful authority, but also acts done beyond the bounds of that official's lawful authority, if the acts are done while the official is purporting to or pretending to act in the performance of his/her official duties. Persons acting under color of law within the meaning of this statute include police officers, prisons guards and other law enforcement officials, as well as judges, care providers in public health facilities, and others who are acting as public officials. It is not necessary that the crime be motivated by animus toward the race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin of the victim.

The offense is punishable by a range of imprisonment up to a life term, or the death penalty, depending upon the circumstances of the crime, and the resulting injury, if any.

See, https://www.justice.gov/crt/deprivation-rights-under-color-law. 

Proof that Judge Kastrenakes himself is involved and has had to have knowledge can be shown by the Fact that on December 20th or 21st, 2021 when Counsel Sweetapple Electronically Mails the Court more False Filings for the Judgment which does not Substitute an Estate for Walter Sahm and Continues the Fraud, Judge Kastrenakes “Signs the Fraudulent Judgment” within a few hours  even though the Email sent by Sweetapple clearly shows he did not even include Service on Counsel Ferderigos who had officially appeared in the case for my children for months and Sweetapple further falsely claimed to the Court to have “Consent” of the counsel for Defendants for the Fraudulent Judgment. 

Yet, despite multiple post Judgment motions filed by Attorney Ferderigos for my sons and myself and wife Candice showing NO Consent to the Judgment and improper Service, including serving my adult sons as minors when they have long been adults, Judge Kastrenakes never took action for any of these motions to report and correct the false statements and fraud in the proceedings. In fact, after my wife Candice and I filed Emergency Motions to Stop the Sale due to Violating the Suggestion of Death Rule 1.260 referenced above, Judge Kastrenakes FAILED to TAKE ANY ACTION in over 48 Hours of our Emergency Filing to Stop the Sale and instead Judge Kastrenakes left a False Foreclosure Sale go forward where he knew and knows that Final Judgment was issued to a deceased person and thus void and would constitute fraud on any potential buyer, until our Sons filed in Bankruptcy against their company BFR, LLC creating a Federal Stay on the Sale. 

All of these facts should be investigated, and this Agency should REFER actions under Federal Law crimes to the FBI and Justice Department as appropriate. 

Dated: ____________               _________________________________
                                                   Eliot I. Bernstein 
                                                    2753 NW 34th St
                                                    Boca Raton, FL 33434 
                                                    561-245-8588
                                                    iviewit@iviewit.tv





